
 

BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD 

BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN 
 
Please note that this meeting will be livestreamed via www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk, please speak to a  
Governance Officer before the meeting should you not wish to consent to being included in this recording. 

 
 
 

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 AGENDA 
1.   APOLOGIES  

 

 

2.   CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 

3.   DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
 

To receive declarations of interest in any item for discussion at the 
meeting. A blank form for declaring interests has been circulated with 
the agenda. 
 

1 - 4 

4.   MINUTES  
 

To consider the approval of the minute of the meetings held on              
16 November 2020 
 

5 - 10 

5.   2021/22 POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER BUDGET AND 
POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER COMPONENT OF THE 
MAYORAL PRECEPT  
 

Report of Andy Burnham, GM Mayor  
 

11 - 26 

6.   GREATER MANCHESTER FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE 
REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET 2021/22  
 

Report of Andy Burnham, GM Mayor 
 

27 - 34 

7.   HMIC - VICTIM SERVICES ASSESSMENT (TO FOLLOW)  
 

Update from Acting Chief Constable, Ian Pilling, GMP   
 

 

DATE: Friday, 29th January, 2021 
 

TIME: 2.00 pm 
 

VENUE: This meeting will be held virtually via Microsoft Teams 
and will be live-streamed for public viewing. The link to 
watch the meeting is available on the meetings page of 
the GMCA website. 
 

  

Public Document

http://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/


2 
 

8.   iOPS  
 

To receive an update from ACC Chris Sykes, GMP 
 

 

9.   EU TRADE AND COOPERATION AGREEMENT- SECURITY 
AND LAW ENFORCEMENT  
 

To receive an update from Acting Chief Constable, Ian Pilling, GMP 
 

 

 

For copies of papers and further information on this meeting please refer to the website 
www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk.  Alternatively, contact the following 

Governance & Scrutiny Officer: Steve Annette 
 steve.annette@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk 

 
 

This agenda was issued on 21 January 2021 on behalf of Julie Connor, Secretary to the  
Greater Manchester Combined Authority, Broadhurst House, 56 Oxford Street, 

Manchester M1 6EU 
 



 1 

POLICE FIRE AND CRIME PANEL – 29 JANUARY 2021 
 
Declaration of Councillors’ Interests in Items Appearing on the Agenda 
 
NAME:  ______________________________ 
 
DATE: _______________________________ 
 

Minute Item No. / Agenda Item No. Nature of Interest Type of Interest 
 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

  Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

  Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
Please see overleaf for a quick guide to declaring interests at meetings. 

  

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 3



 2 

QUICK GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

This is a summary of the rules around declaring interests at meetings. It does not replace the Member’s Code of Conduct, the full description can be found 
in the GMCA’s constitution Part 7A.  

Your personal interests must be registered on the GMCA’s Annual Register within 28 days of your appointment onto a GMCA committee and any changes to 
these interests must notified within 28 days. Personal interests that should be on the register include: 

 Bodies to which you have been appointed by the GMCA 

 Your membership of bodies exercising functions of a public nature, including charities, societies, political parties or trade unions. 

You are also legally bound to disclose the following information called DISCLOSABLE PERSONAL INTERESTS which includes: 

 You, and your partner’s business interests (eg employment, trade, profession, contracts, or any company with which you are associated) 

 You and your partner’s wider financial interests (eg trust funds, investments, and assets including land and property).  

 Any sponsorship you receive. 

FAILURE TO DISCLOSE THIS INFORMATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE 

STEP ONE: ESTABLISH WHETHER YOU HAVE AN INTEREST IN THE BUSINESS OF THE AGENDA 

If the answer to that question is ‘No’ – then that is the end of the matter. If the answer is ‘Yes’ or Very Likely’ then you must go on to consider if that 
personal interest can be construed as being a prejudicial interest.  

STEP TWO: DETERMINING IF YOUR INTEREST PREJUDICIAL? 
A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest: 

 where the well being, or financial position of you, your partner, members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association (people who 

are more than just an acquaintance) are likely to be affected by the business of the meeting more than it would affect most people in the area.  

 the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to 

prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 

FOR A NON PREJUDICIAL INTEREST  

YOU MUST 

 Notify the governance officer for the meeting as soon as you realise you 

FOR PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS  

YOU MUST 

 Notify the governance officer for the meeting as soon as you realise you 

P
age 2



 3 

have an interest 

 Inform the meeting that you have a personal interest and the nature of 

the interest 

 Fill in the declarations of interest form 

TO NOTE:  

 You may remain in the room and speak and vote on the matter  

 If your interest relates to a body to which the GMCA has appointed you 

to you only have to inform the meeting of that interest if you speak on 

the matter. 

have a prejudicial interest (before or during the meeting) 

 Inform the meeting that you have a prejudicial interest and the nature of 

the interest 

 Fill in the declarations of interest form 

 Leave the meeting while that item of business is discussed 

 Make sure the interest is recorded on your annual register of interests 

form if it relates to you or your partner’s business or financial affairs. If it 

is not on the Register update it within 28 days of the interest becoming 

apparent.  

YOU MUST NOT: 

 participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you 

become aware of your disclosable pecuniary interest during the meeting 

participate further in any discussion of the business,  

 participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GM POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL HELD ON       
MONDAY 16 NOVEMBER 2020 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS  

 

PRESENT: 

Councillor Nadim Muslim  Bolton Council 

Councillor David Jones  Bury Council 

Councillor Nigel Murphy   Manchester City Council – (In the Chair) 

Councillor Steve Williams  Oldham Council 

Councillor Janet Emsley  Rochdale Council    

Councillor David Lancaster  Salford City Council 

Councillor Amanda Peers  Stockport Council 

Councillor Warren Bray  Tameside Council 

Councillor Mike Freeman  Trafford Council 

Councillor Kevin Anderson  Wigan Council 

Majid Hussain    Independent Member 

ALSO PRESENT: 

Baroness Beverley Hughes  GM Deputy Mayor  

Chris Sykes    Assistant Chief Constable, GMP    

OFFICERS: 

Clare Monaghan Director Policing, Crime and Fire, GMCA 

Jeanette Staley   Salford City Council & GM Police and Crime Policy Lead 

Gwynne Williams   Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA   

Sarah Keaveny    Head of Comms, GMCA  

Nicola Ward                  GMCA Governance and Scrutiny 

Paul Harris                  GMCA Governance and Scrutiny   

Paul Duggan    GMF&RS 

 
Steve Annette    GMCA Governance and Scrutiny 

APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received on behalf Carolyn Wilkins, Lead Chief Executive, Policing, Fire and 

Crime and Angela Lawrence, Independent Member. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

2 
 

PFCP/13/20     CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS     

There were no items raised.  
 
PFCP/14/20  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 29 SEPTEMBER 2020 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the Minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2020 be approved as a          
correct record. 

 
PFCP/15/20  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest made. The Chair reminded members to return the 
GMCA Annual Declaration of Interest form to the GMCA Governance officer.     
 
PCFP/16/20  GM POLICE PRECEPT SETTING PROCESS 
 
Steve Wilson, GMCA Treasurer introduced a report and provided an overview of the 
statutory duties of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel in relation to the setting of the police 
precept and the timescale. He added that conversations were on-going with GMP 
colleagues, the GM Mayor and GM Deputy regarding the in-year financial position, to 
better understand the issues and medium-term planning drivers moving forward. He added 
that the report referred to the Comprehensive Spending Review, further adding that the 
multi-years spending review and budget had been pushed back. Details of the spending 
review which will be announced next week would provide an indication of the Home Office 
settlement.        
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. To note that statutory duties of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel in relation to the 
setting of the police precept.  

 
2. To note the timetable for the setting of the 2021/22 police precept and to agree 
that an additional meeting of the Panel be convened in mid-January for this purpose, 
under the direction of the Chair. 

 
PCFP/17/20  GMP – POLICE RECRUITMENT  
 
Steve Williams, Oldham Council introduced a report which outlined a Motion raised at the 
Full Council meeting in Oldham on 9 September regarding a report published by Her 
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) on Roads 
Policing. The Motion asked GMP to provide more responsive support in relation to drivers’ 
behaviour and speeding. 
 
There followed a detailed discussion with members asking a variety of question and making 
comments including;  
 
Members agreed that greater support would be valued by most local communities as there 
was significant local reporting of excessive traffic speeds and some evidence of increased 

Page 6



 

3 
 

road traffic accidents and one recent local fatality. Investment was needed but the Panel 
also welcome a view from GMP about priorities for road safety. Other members believed 
that a great deal of work was already being undertaken by LA Community Safety Teams / 
Community Action Groups in partnership with GMP, using resources. Including cameras, 
provided from the Deputy Mayor’s budget. The importance of developing a unified 
partnership approach was emphasised and for the purpose of developing that approach 
data on road traffic accidents to enable informed comparisons of the position across GM 
authorities and other police forces.      
         
The Deputy Mayor in thanking members for their contributions, added that she felt this 
was an important issue and that the approach that should be adopted moving forward is by 
way of a partnership approach between GMP, LA and TfGM and GMF&RS. She added that 
ACC Bailey, GMP was leading through the safer roads partnership on the development of a 
new strategy and to urge the promotion of a National Road Strategy, and would welcome 
the opportunity to provide members with an update on its aims and objectives.    
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. To note the motion passed at the Full Council meeting in Oldham and it was agreed 
that this is a substantive item for consideration at a future meeting of the Panel.  

 
PCFP/18/20  IOPS UPDATE 

ACC Sykes, GMP introduced a paper and provided members an update on the progress in 
the continuing development of GMPs iOPS technology. He reported that the programme of 
works under iOPS Futures would be concentrating on its next version of Police Works, the 
GMP records management system, which is a software improvement which will 
significantly change the way that officers search and interrogate the system.  

It was anticipated that this would be launched before Christmas, subject to any operational 
issues with suppliers due to Covid restrictions. He added that the system was performing 
well and was stable, despite the pressures and demands placed upon it as a result of Covid.    

A member commented that there had been issues with local authorities accessing crime 
statistics to inform future planning. ACC Sykes said accessibility should now be happening 
through the existing community safety partnership structures. 

A member added that there had been an issue in his borough in accessing data in relation 
to some cumulative impact zones in Leigh and Wigan town centres, and ACC Sykes agreed 
to look into this matter and report back in due course.  

A member asked about the current position regarding remote access by community safety 
teams and the roll-out of IT equipment. Jeanette Staley, Salford City Council, Police, Fire & 
Crime Policy Lead, reported that this was something that she was coordinating pan- GM 
and added that there was a commitment from GMP to roll-out Windows 10 laptops to 
community safety teams.  

A member in acknowledging the improvements in the system, asked if there was any work 
being undertaken to improve customer service and whether there was an ambition going 
forward to share data, where appropriate, with other partner organisations such as the 
NHS improve the way services are delivered to communities.       

Page 7



 

4 
 

RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the update be noted. 
 

PCFP/19/20  GM POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL – COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE 

Gwynn Williams, Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA introduced a report which presented 
for approval minor revisions to the Panel’s Complaints Procedure, arising from the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (Fire and Rescue Functions) (Amendment) Order 2020 
and requesting that the Panel delegate the functions of the Lead Chief Executive, Carolyn 
Wilkins, under the Complaints Procedure to the Chief Executive of Salford City Council, Jim 
Taylor, in the GM Lead Chief Executive’s current absence from role.  

RESOLVED/- 

1. That the revised Complaints Procedure as described in Appendix 1 to the report be 
approved.   
 

2. That approval be given to the revised Complaints Procedure delegating authority to 
Jim Taylor, Chief Executive of Salford City Council, to undertake the functions of the 
GM Lead Chief Executive under the Complaints Procedure, in the GM Lead Chief Ex-
ecutive’s absence from role.  

PFCP/20/20  DECISIONS AND ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE GM DEPUTY MAYOR   
 

Consideration was given to a report which highlighted decisions made by the GM Deputy 
Mayor in the period from September 2020 to November 2020. 

RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

2. That all future reports include recommendations that assess and identify the impact of 
the proposal on inequalities, environmental and financial issues in relation to the topic. This 
would be supported by a commitment to collect, analyse and report on data, including 
community intelligence, to understand that impact.  

PFCP/21/20  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To be confirmed.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



 

5 
 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
 

GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY  
POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL  

 
Date:   29th January 2021 
 
Subject: 2021/22 PCC BUDGET AND PCC COMPONENT OF THE MAYORAL 

PRECEPT 
 
Report of: MAYOR OF GREATER MANCHESTER  
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To notify Panel members of the proposed PCC budget for 2021/22 including the latest expected budget 
numbers for Greater Manchester Police and to seek a report on the Mayor’s proposals for the PCC 
component of the Mayoral precept for 2021/22.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. Note that the Mayor proposes to increase the police precept by £15 per year for 

a band D property with effect from 1 April 2021. This will take the Band D police 
precept to £223.30 per year (£173.67 for a Band B property). 

 
The Panel are asked to consider the content of this report, and either 

 

a) propose that the precept level can be issued, or 
b) make recommendations regarding the precept level, or 
c) veto the proposal and require the Mayor to submit a revised proposed 

precept. 
 

2. Note the budget assumptions relating to the budgets for 2021/22, including the 
proposals for the Community Safety Fund. 

 
 
Background papers presented to the Police and Crime Panel: 
 
16th November 2020 – Police precept setting process 
 
CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
Steve Wilson, Treasurer 
Steve.Wilson@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk   

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Steve.Wilson@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk


 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 There is a statutory duty to notify the Police and Crime Panel of the Police and Crime 

Commissioners (PCC) Precept proposal by 1st February each year. Details of the Police and 
Crime Panel’s statutory duties in relation to the setting of the precept can be found at Appendix 
1. 

 
1.2 As part of the overall funding for policing in 2021/22, the Government has given PCCs the ability 

to raise the police element of council tax (the precept) by up to £1.25 a month, £15 a year for an 
average Band D property (£11.66 a year for an average Band B property). 
 

1.3 The proposal to the Police and Crime Panel for Greater Manchester is to set the PCC element of 
the Mayoral precept for a Band D property at £223.30 (£173.67 for a Band B property). This report 
sets out the considerations that have been taken into account to reach this decision. 

 
1.4 The report also sets out the background to the 2021/22 budget setting process for both the PCC 

budget and the GMP budget and confirms the high level budget for the PCC as a whole including 
the impact of the 2021/22 police funding settlement from Central Government. 
 

1.5 If approved, this £15 increase will raise £11.2m which, after adjusting for a decrease in the Greater 
Manchester tax base of £1.8m, would be an increase of £9.4m. The tax base reduction reflects 
the council tax revenue that will not be collected as a result of existing local council support 
schemes provided by GM districts. 
 

1.6 For 2020/21 budget there was an estimated collection fund surplus of £2.8m. Based on the latest 
estimates of council tax collection for 2020/21, following the impact of the pandemic and the 
support announced as part of the 2020 Spending Review there is an estimated collection fund 
deficit of £0.9m which will impact the 2021/22 budget. This is a decrease in the collection fund 
position by an estimated £3.7m. 

1.7 This would be an overall funding package for police and crime in Greater Manchester that sees 
an increase of £29.6m. This is broken down below: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description 2020/21 2021/22 Change 

  £m £m £m 

Core Grant 467.2 495.0 27.8 

Precept 158.9 168.3 9.4 

Collection Fund Surplus 2.8 -0.9 -3.7 

Total Funding 628.9 662.4 33.5 

Ring Fenced uplift grant 9.7 5.8 -3.9 

Pension grant 6.6 6.6 0 

Overall Total 645.2 674.8 29.6 

Page 12



1.8 The grant funding increase is expected to deliver the second year of the national expansion 
programme of 20,000 police officers over three years. In 2020/21 this was 6,000 officers nationally 
which for GM equated to 347 new officers recruited in 2020/21. It was anticipated that 8,000 
officers nationally and 463 officers for GM would be recruited in 2021/22. The 2020 Spending 
Review provided funding for additional 6,000 which equates to 325 in 2021/22, plus 16 to support 
the Regional Organised Crime Unit (ROCU). 

 
1.9 Funding 2020/21 included a front loaded contribution to the infrastructure costs of new officers 

(training, equipment etc) of £20m of which £10m will be drawn upon from reserve to support the 
costs of delivery in 2021/22.  

 
1.10 Whilst the increase in funding and police officer numbers is a positive step, the underlying financial 

position for GMP is likely to remain very challenging once the expected number of police officers 
have been recruited. 

 
1.11 The Mayoral precept, which includes the PCC component, will be set on 12th February 2021.   
 

2. BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 The police grant for 2021/22 will be £495m, an increase of £27.8m. This excludes the continued 

pension grant of £6.6m, from HM Treasury, to partially mitigate against rising employer pension 

costs for police officers. 

 

2.2 In addition to the increase of £27.8m described above, there is a further allocation of £5.8m for 

Greater Manchester which is ring fenced against the delivery of recruitment targets in 2021/22. 

This relates to the recruitment of the second tranche of the promised 20,000 new officers 

nationwide. To ensure progress in recruitment is maintained and to track the use of this 

investment efficiently, the Government will ring-fence £100 million of the additional funding. 

 

2.3 Within the settlement the Home Secretary announced a maximum police precept increase of £15 

per year for a Band D property.  

 

2.4 The context within which the police and partner agencies are working is challenging and becoming 

ever more complex. Greater Manchester was resolute and united in the face of terrorism – but 

this remains a threat. Organised crime groups are increasingly engaged in diverse serious 

criminal activity handling the supply of drugs, criminal and sexual exploitation of children, modern 

slavery and human trafficking. Cybercrime, attacks on individuals and businesses, fraud, 

blackmail, grooming – it’s escalating and perpetrated not only by criminals in the UK, but across 

the world. We must respond to these threats whilst at the same time maintain our commitment to 

strong neighbourhood policing. 

 

2.5 The 2021/22 settlement included a number of top slices made by the Home Office, which have 

the effect of reducing the resources available for local policing. The total value of the top slices is 

£1,033.5m, a decrease of £87.4m (8%).  

 

2.6 Capital grant funding is unchanged from 2020/21 at £0.6m, supported by the £20m infrastructure 

funding for the new officers front loaded into the 2020/21 settlement. Of this funding £10m will be 

drawn upon from reserve to support the costs of delivery in 2021/22.     

Page 13



 

2.7 As indicated above, the medium and longer term funding settlement for the Police is far from 

certain and the ability to plan for the medium term is severely hampered by this one-year 

settlement and a number of related uncertainties. This mainly relates to the future funding for the 

third tranche of additional 8,000 officers, future funding of the police officer pension costs, and 

the prospect of a funding formula review. Further details can be found in section 6 of this report. 

 
3. 2021/22 BUDGET 

 
3.1 The following key budget assumptions have been made in developing the 2021/22 budget based 

on the one-year settlement issued by the Home Office. 
 

 Pay freeze  

 Assume no general price inflation except specific cases 

 Police officer pension contributions funding remains at £6.6m 

 Police staff pension contributions remain static for the next year (tri-annual review 2020) 

 Council tax base reduction of £1.8m  

 Collection fund deficit of £0.9m 

 
3.2 The 2020 Spending Review committed £670m of additional Local Council Tax Support (LTCS) 

grant nationally to help local authorities support more than 4 million households that are least able 
to afford council tax. The indicative LCTS grant for the PCC is £4.2m, which is part of £37.3m 
indicative allocations for GM districts and GMCA. It is anticipated as part of setting the PCC budget 
that all of this grant will be used in additional council tax support provided through local schemes 
determined by individual districts.    

 
3.3 For 2020/21 budget there was an estimated collection fund surplus of £2.8m. The estimated 

position on the collection fund in relation to the PCC is a deficit of £5.4m for 2020/21, following 
the impact of the pandemic. The government amended regulations from 1st December 2020 to 
permit authorities to spread collection fund deficits over the next three years rather than the usual 
period of a year.  The 2020 Spending Review committed £762m nationally to compensate for 75% 
of irrecoverable council tax and business rates revenues in 2020/21 that would otherwise need to 
be funded through budgets in 2021/22. The government has recently issued guidance on how the 
allocations will be allocated which requires interpretation by the Districts to determine impact on 
the Police budget.  At this stage the estimated position on the collection fund for PCC is a deficit 
of £0.9m for 2021/22, this is a change of £3.7m from the £2.8m surplus position estimated for 
2020/21.   
 

3.2 With the uncertainty over future funding settlements, including future funding for new officers and 
associated infrastructure the £20m upfront funding in 2020/21 will be applied £10m in 2021/22 
and £10m in 2022/23.  

 
  

Page 14



3.3 The movement between years is shown in the bridge chart below:  
 

   

 
The chart shows how the impact of the above factors, including an assumed investment in 
infrastructure and capital break-even budget position for 2021/22.  
 
Transfers to/From Reserves - £7m net benefit 
 
The non-recurrent cost of delivering the new GMP Target Operating Model (TOM) has decreased 
from £9.8m in 2020/21 to £8.9m in 2021/22.  
£10m of reserves have been allocated to support the delivery of infrastructure associated with the 
recruitment of new officers. This is one off funding for 2021/22. 
 
2020/21 Infrastructure Funding - £20m benefit 
 
In the 20/21 grant settlement there was funding for additional infrastructure costs which was held 
in reserves until required, this is now played into the 21/22 budget. 
 
Pay Inflation - £9m cost 
 
Whilst the par review settlement is zero increase there are a number of areas where pay uplifts 
and other pay pressures apply 
 
New Officers Direct Cost - £15m cost 
 

Page 15



The direct cost of employing the new officers recruited in GM is £15m. This does not include the 
other cost pressures associated with the expanding workforce number which are included below. 
 

 

  Other Investments/Cost Pressures - £36m cost 

 
There are potential pressures and investments identified of £36.2m for 2021/22.  
 
This includes a number of proposals from chief officers which will be reviewed in conjunction with 
the Deputy Mayor prior to any final decision. 
 
The costs are broken down in the table below: 

 

 
 

4. OPERATIONAL DELIVERY 
 

4.1 Major deliverables of the 2021/22 budget will include: 

 

 A new approach to safeguarding with 150 officers to keep our most vulnerable victims safe 

 A new city centre team concentrating on violence reduction and improving the safety of the 

city centre 

 Investing resources to enable more young people involved with, or at risk of becoming 

involved in, gang activity to take part in a successful mentoring programme – the STEER 

project 

 Pilot programme to ensure a crisis worker responds alongside a police officer to reports of 

rape and serious sexual offences 

 Establish a mechanism for continued dialogue with victims of crime 

 Transform the response to and support for victims of domestic violence  

 Continue to fund the mental health tactical advice service, where mental health nurses are 

based in control rooms 24/7 to ensure despatchers and attending officers are able to provide 

the most effective service to people suffering such distress 

 Analysis is underway to inform a range of initiatives to reduce death and serious injury on the 

roads, supporting conventional enforcement with a more localized approach to educate 

drivers. A number of community lead speedwatch schemes will also be piloted. 

 

Description £'000s

Chief Officer Priorities (11.7)

Insurance (6.5)

Crime recording (2.0)

Call handling (1.6)

Covid Contingency (3.0)

Cost of Capital Increase (5.4)

Premises (1.8)

ICT (3.7)

Other (0.5)

Total (36.2)

Page 16



5 COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIPS  

 

5.1 In 2021/22 the budget continues to provide over £4m delegated to Community Safety 
Partnerships to support delivery of ‘Standing Together’ the Police and Crime Plan, collectively 
making our communities safer and more resilient.  

 
 

Local 
Authority  

Community 
Safety 
Grant 

Children’s 
Safeguarding 
Board 

Adult’s 
Safeguarding 
Board 

Delegation 
of grants to 
Voluntary 
sector 

Hate 
Crime 

TOTAL 

Bolton 304,523 17,296 17,296 100,000 5,000 444,155 

Bury 157,973 11,850 11,850 100,000 5,000 286,673 

Manchester 694,584 31,866 31,866 200,000 10,000 968,316 

Oldham 262,287 12,900 12,900 100,000 5,000 393,087 

Rochdale 234,000 12,150 12,150 100,000 5,000 363,300 

Salford 239,306 13,500 13,500 100,000 5,000 371,306 

Stockport 218,973 13,800 13,800 100,000 5,000 351,573 

Tameside 243,703 13,200 13,200 100,000 5,000 375,103 

Trafford 200,800 12,900 12,900 100,000 5,000 331,600 

Wigan 247,614 14,400 14,400 100,000 5,000 381,414 

       

TOTAL 2,803,763 153,862 153,862 1,100,000 55,000 4,266,487 

 
 
5.2 Building on the work of previous years, CSPs have continued to work closely on both GM and 

local priorities, and are using Community Safety funds to support targeted work in 
neighbourhoods. Oversight and governance is managed through local partnership arrangements 
and the Deputy Mayor is informed of spending profiles through an initial proposal followed by a 
mid-year update on progress. The Community Safety Grant provides CSPs with local autonomy 
to direct funds at key police and crime priorities. 

 
5.3 The Deputy Mayor continues to delegate Voluntary and Community sector grants (Standing 

Together), following consultation and feedback from CSPs who provide a mid-year progress 
update detailing the allocation of funds to local groups and voluntary sector organisations. The 
grants are being used to support communities to tackle grass roots issues of concern whilst 
developing resilience and cohesion as local people are contributing to achieving Standing 
Together priorities.  

 

5.4 A summary of the types of schemes and initiatives that the Voluntary and Community Sector 
grants have funded are set out below: 

 

 Tackling anti-social behaviour and improving behaviour through early intervention and 

diversionary work with young people 

 Support for victims of domestic and sexual abuse, including victims from minority 

communities and provide prevention interventions in schools 

 Advice and awareness regarding healthy relationships for young people 

 Reducing the risk of exploitation of vulnerable young people 

 Reducing the risk of offending and re-offending 

 Community cohesion and hate crime 

Page 17



 Keeping children and young people safe 

 Interventions and awareness to prevent serious violence and promote awareness of the 

consequences 

 Supporting vulnerable adults and reducing isolation 

 
 

6 TOP SLICING  

 

6.1 In order to create budgets for national initiatives the Home Office top slices the Police Main Grant. 
In essence, this reduces the amount which is allocated to Police and Crime Commissioners to 
support local policing. Within the provisional settlement for 2021/22 the Home Office top sliced 
£1,033.5m from the Police Main Grant. This is £87.4m lower than last year.  
 

6.2 The table below details the top slices for 2021/22:  

  
Top Slice 2020/21 

£m  
 

2021/22 
£m  

 

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)  72.8 71.6 

Police Technology Programmes (including ESN) 498.4 484.7 

Arm’s Length Bodies 73.1 70.5 

Serious and Organised Crime Strategy 
implementation 

140.0 146.3 

Top ups to National Crime Agency and ROCUs 
(Regional and organised crime units) 

56.8 4.9 

International Crime Co-ordination Centre 0 5.0 

Special Grant 80.9 54.8 

Pre-charge Bail 2.0 2.0 

Police Uplift Programme 16.5 14.5 

Police Commercial Organisation 3.7 5.0 

Forensics 28.6 25.6 

Police Now 7 7.0 

Serious Violence Strategy 38.9 38.9 

National Capability Programmes 47.0 38.7 

National Operational Policing Units (including 
football policing and wildlife crime unit) 

2.9 2.9 

National Policing Capabilities (NPCC) 0 3.2 

Safe Streets Fund 10.0 20.0 

Science Technology and Research 8.0 5.2 

Counter Terrorism 32.4 32.5 

TOTAL 1,121.0 1,033.5 

  
 

7 MEDIUM TERM PLANNING UNCERTAINTIES 

 

Pensions 

 

Page 18



7.1 In 2019/20 the Home Office provided funding of £8.5m which has now been included in core grant 
and a further £6.6m in specific grant to cover these additional costs. The funding in core grant for 
2021/22 has rolled forward again and the specific grant of £6.6m has once again been provided., 
however there is a risk that the grant may not continue beyond 2021/22.   

 
Future funding for 20,000 additional officers 

 

7.2 The new officers recruited as part of the national programme was expected to be 8,000 nationally 

in 2021/22, but the Government has now confirmed it will be 6,000, of which Greater Manchester’s 

share will be 325 plus 16 to support the Regional Organised Crime Unit (ROCU). 

 

8 RESERVES  

 

8.1 Reserves as at 31 March 2020 were £85.346m, and are predicted to be £92.601m at 31 March 

2021. Based on the proposals in this report to apply £6.625m of reserves during 2021/22, the 

forecast reserves at 31st March 2022 are expected to be £85.975m.  These figures assume 

General Fund balances will not be used to fund any future deficits.  

 

 

8.2 The forecast balance at 31 March 2021 includes a number of reserves set aside to meet 

contractual obligations in the future; these include a PFI reserve of £10.6m, an insurance reserve 

of £14.3m and an operational contingency reserve of £7.5m. It has been the strategy to maintain 

reserves at a prudent level particularly given the uncertainty of the funding landscape which 

includes the future levels of police grant, the potential impact of a Spending Review, increased 

threat levels.  

 

 

Police Fund Earmarked Reserves Actual     
31st 

March 
2020 

Planned 
trfs out/ 

(in) 
2020/21 

Forecast 
31st 

March 
2021 

Planned 
trfs out/ 

(in) 
2021/22 

Forecast 
31st 

March 
2022 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Police Fund General Reserve (15,375)   (15,375)   (15,375) 
Capital Finance Reserve (3,797)   (3,797)   (3,797) 
CF Smoothing Reserve (1,316) (204) (1,520)   (1,520) 
Commissioning Reserve (8,966) 2,864 (6,102) (2,025) (8,127) 
Community Crime Fund reserve (4,071) 226 (3,845)   (3,845) 
Health and Justice reserve (276) 135 (141)   (141) 
Justice and Rehabilitation reserve (1,427) 568 (860)   (860) 
Legal costs reserve (1,855)   (1,855)   (1,855) 
Sexual assault commissioning reserve (3,374) 400 (2,974)   (2,974) 
Traffic Enforcement & Road Safety Reserve (189)   (189)   (189) 
Transformation Reserve (2,329) 500 (1,829) (500) (2,329) 
Youth aspiration / diversion reserve (93)   (93)   (93) 
Pay reserve 0 (1,500) (1,500) 1,500 0 
Infrastructure reserve 0 (20,112) (20,112) 10,056 (10,056) 
Chief Constable's Insurance reserve (15,881) 1,627 (14,254)   (14,254) 
PFI reserve (11,227) 620 (10,607)   (10,607) 
Revenue Expenditure Reserve (15,170) 7,621 (7,549) (2,406) (9,954) 

Total Police Fund Reserves (85,346) (7,254) (92,601) 6,625 (85,975) 

Page 19



 

9 PRECEPT PROPOSALS  

 
9.1 In 2020/21 Greater Manchester increased the Police and Crime element of the Mayoral precept 

by the maximum allowed by Government of £10. This increase allowed additional police numbers 

to be established and further improvements to be made: 

 

 50 Neighbourhood beat officers, enabling the provision of a named officer for every ward  

 A dedicated transport unit of 50 officers  

 40 additional call handlers to improve the 101 service 

 Investment in IVR technology – an Interactive Voice Response automated telephony system 

 Investment in frontline through clothing, footwear, training and equipment, including mobile 
applications for frontline officers 

 Committed to provide a dedicated police officer in schools for those who want them, and every 
educational establishment will be linked to a named neighbourhood liaison officer. 

 
9.2 Taking into consideration the factors outlined in this report, and to allow the continued investment 

in the priority areas funded from the £10 precept increase in 2020/21 the Mayor and Deputy Mayor 
are proposing a £15 increase to the PCC component of the Mayoral precept for Band D properties 
for 2021/22.  
 

9.3 The public consultation will close on 28th January 2021 and final results will be shared at the Police 
and Crime Panel meeting.  
 

9.4 The table below shows the impact for each Council Tax band of a £15 increase  
 

 COUNCIL TAX BANDS 

 A B C D E F G H 

2021/22 

proposed 

precept  

148.86 173.67 198.48 223.30 272.92 322.54 372.16 446.60 

2020/21 PCC 

precept 

 

138.86 162.01 185.15 208.30 254.58 300.87 347.16 416.60 

Change  

(£ per year) 

10.00 11.66 13.33 15.00 18.34 21.67 25.00 30.00 

        

 
9.5 The police precept, on average, represents 11.32% of the overall council tax bill. The impact of a 

£15 increase is a 7.2% increase on 2020/21, for band D properties, an increase of just 29 pence 
per week. 
 

9.6 45% of Greater Manchester properties fall into the band A category, for these properties the 
annual increase will be £10.00, an increase of just 19 pence per week. For Band B the annual 
increase will be £11.66, an increase of just 22 pence per week. 

Page 20



 
 
10 RECOMMENDATION 

 
10.1 The Panel are asked to consider the content of this report and either: 

 

a) propose that the PCC precept level can be issued, or 
b) make recommendations regarding the precept level, or 
c) veto the proposal and require the PCC to submit a revised proposed 

precept. 
 

10.2 Note the budget assumptions relating to the budget for 2021/22.  

  

Page 21



 

Appendix 1 
Police and Crime Panels – Scrutiny of Precepts  
 
This appendix explains the process for the police and crime panel’s (PCP) scrutiny of the police and 
crime commissioner’s (PCC) proposed precept and should be read alongside:  
 

 Schedule 5 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (“the Act”)  

 Part 2 of the Police and Crime Panels (Precepts and Chief Constable Appointments) Regulations 
2012 (“the Regulations”)  

 
 
Background  
 
Schedule 5 of the Act sets out the process for issuing a precept, including the panel’s role in reviewing 
the proposed precept, their power to veto the precept and the steps to be taken if they do veto the 
proposed precept.  
The Regulations provide greater detail to the Act, including time limits applicable to the stages of the 
process and the process for reviewing and issuing a revised precept.  
 
Schedule 5 requires:  
 

 the PCC to notify the panel of his/her proposed precept;  

 the panel to review the proposed precept;  

 the panel to make a report to the PCC on the proposed precept (this may include 
recommendations);  

 the panel’s report (if they veto the proposed precept) to include a statement that they have vetoed 
it;  

 a decision of veto to be agreed by two-thirds of the panel members;  

 the PCC to have regard to the report made by the panel (including any recommendations in the 
report);  

 the PCC to give the panel a response to their report (and any such recommendations);  

 the PCC to publish the response.  
 
It is for the panel to determine how a response to a report or recommendations is to be published.  
If there is no veto and the PCC has published his/her response to the panel’s report, the PCC may then 
issue the proposed precept - or a different precept (but only if in accordance with a recommendation in 
the panel’s report to do so).  
 
The Regulations require:  
 

 the PCC to notify the panel of his/her proposed precept by 1 February;  

 the panel to review and make a report to the PCC on the proposed precept (whether it vetoes the 
precept or not) by 8 February;  

 where the panel vetoes the precept, the PCC to have regard to and respond to the Panel’s report, 
and publish his/her response, including the revised precept, by 15 February;  

 the panel, on receipt of a response from the PCC notifying them of his/her revised precept, 
to review the revised precept and make a second report to the PCC by 22 February;  

Page 22



 the PCC to have regard to and respond to the Panel’s second report and publish his/her 
response, by 1 March.  

 
 
 
Panel’s report on the proposed precept  
If the panel fails to report to the PCC by 8 February the scrutiny process comes to an end, even if 
the panel have voted to veto the proposed precept, and the PCC may issue the proposed precept.  
 
PCC’s response to a veto  
Where the panel vetoes the proposed precept, the PCC must have regard to the report made by the 
panel, give the panel a response to the report and publish the response, by 15 February. In his/her 
response, the PCC must notify the panel of the revised precept that he intends to issue.  
 
Where the panel’s report indicates that they vetoed the precept because it was:  
 

 too high, the revised precept must be lower than the previously proposed precept.  

 too low, the revised precept must be higher than the previously proposed precept.  

 
 
Panel’s review of the revised precept  
On receipt of a response from the PCC notifying them of the revised precept proposal, the panel 
must review the revised precept proposal and make a second report to the PCC on the revised 
precept by 22 February. This report may:  
 

 indicate whether the panel accepts or rejects the revised precept (although rejection does 
not prevent the PCC from issuing the revised precept); and  

 make recommendations, including recommendations on the precept that should be issued.  
 
If the panel fails to make a second report to the PCC by 22 February, the PCC may issue the 
revised precept.  
 
Issuing the precept  
Excluding where the panel fails to report on the proposed precept by 8 February or make a second 
report on the revised precept by 22 February, the scrutiny process ends when the PCC gives the 
panel his/her response to their second report.  
The PCC may then:  
 

 issue the revised precept; or  

 issue a different precept, although:  

The PCP may only veto the first proposed precept. Such a veto must be agreed by two-thirds of 

PCP members (the full membership rather than those present at a meeting). Where a veto 

occurs, the report to the PCC must include a statement to that effect. 

Page 23



 they must not issue a precept that is higher than the revised precept if the revised 
precept was lowered following the panel’s initial report on the first proposed precept 
indicating it was vetoed because it was too high;  
 

they must not issue a precept which is lower than the revised precept if the revised 
precept was raised following the panel’s initial report on the first proposed precept 
indicating it was vetoed because it was too low.  

 
 
 
 

Page 24



 
  
  

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
 

GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY  
POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL  

 
Date:   29th January 2021 
 
Subject: GREATER MANCHESTER FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE REVENUE AND 

CAPITAL BUDGET 2021/22 
 
Report of: MAYOR OF GREATER MANCHESTER  

 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to inform Panel members of the proposed budget for Greater Manchester 
Fire and Rescue Service (GMFRS) budget for 2021/22 and updated Medium Term Financial Plan.   
 
The precept proposals for GMFRS in 2021/22 will form part of the Mayoral General Budget and Precept 
Proposals report to GMCA on 29th January 2021.   

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1 To note, and comment on: 

i. the overall budget proposed for the Fire and Rescue Service,  
ii. the use of the reserves to support the revenue and capital budgets 
iii. the proposed Fire Service capital programme and proposals for funding, 
iv. the medium term financial position for the Fire and Rescue Service covered by the Mayoral 

precept 
 

2. To note that at its meeting on 12 February 2021 there will be an updated budget submitted, 
 consistent with the precept proposals, to reflect final tax base and collection fund calculations  
 and the final Revenue Support Grant settlement. 

 
 
Background papers presented to the Police and Crime Panel: 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICERS 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
 
 
   

 
 

 
 
 

Name: Steve Wilson, Treasurer to GMCA 
Telephone: 07725 481067 

E-Mail: steve.wilson@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk  

  

Name: Rachel Rosewell, Deputy Treasurer to GMCA 
Telephone: 07725 482865 

E-Mail: rachel.rosewell@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk 

  

Name: Andrea Heffernan, Director of Corporate Support (GMFRS) 
Telephone: 0161 736 5866 

E-Mail: andrea.heffernan@manchesterfire.gov.uk 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28

mailto:steve.wilson@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.heffernan@manchesterfire.gov.uk


1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Panel members of the proposed budget for Greater 

Manchester Fire and Rescue Service (GMFRS) budget for 2021/22 and updated Medium Term 
Financial Plan.  The precept proposals for GMFRS in 2021/22 will form part of the Mayoral 
General Budget and Precept Proposals report to GMCA on 29th January 2021.   

 
1.2 The report sets out the updated Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) to 2023/24, updated for 

pay and price inflation, known cost pressures and agreed savings.  The funding supporting the 
2021/22 Budget represented a one-year settlement from MHCLG, with allocations based on the 
Spending Review 2020.   
 

1.3 The Chancellor announced a one-year Spending Review in November 2020, in relation to the 
Fire and Rescue Service, the Spending Review announcements covered the following:  

 

 Council Tax referendum limits of 2% for Fire and Rescue Services 

 Compensation of 75% for irrecoverable Council Tax revenue relating to 2020/21 arrears, 
which would otherwise need funded from budgets in 2021/22 

 Grant funding to compensate GMFRS for loss of 2021/22 precept income resulting from 
Local Authorities enhancing local Council Tax relief schemes 

 Real terms protection expected with flat cash pensions grant  

 Public sector pay is frozen for one year 
 

1.4  The Provisional Local Government Settlement was published in December 2020 and the MTFP 
 has been updated based on this. Final confirmation of the funding position will be confirmed 
 in the Local Government Final Settlement due for late January / early February. 

 

1.5 The table below presents the budget requirements incorporating pressures and savings from 
2021/22 onwards: 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 
 

 

Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Fire Service 103,570 109,514 106,529 106,036 

Pay and price inflation 2,609 212 1,529 1,552 

Savings - Programme for Change and other  -29 -2,857 -1,791 -5,294 

Cost – Programme for Change and other 3,363 -340 -231 -22 

Cost of service 109,514 106,529 106,036 102,273 

Capital Financing Charges 1,687 2,316 3,246 4,324 

Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay 4,201 2,700 0 0 

Use of Capital Reserves -4,201 -2,700 0 0 

Net Service Budget 111,201 108,845 109,282 106,597 

          

Funded by: 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Localised Business Rates 10,614 10,614 10,614 10,614 

Baseline funding 40,250 40,353 40,353 40,353 

Section 31 - Business rates related 2,062 2,062 2,062 2,062 

Section 31 - Pension related 5,605 5,605 0 0 

Precept income (at £66.20 Band D) 50,494 49,901 50,650 50,650 

Collection Fund surplus/deficit  220 -971 -971 -971 

75% Grant Collection Fund Losses 0 728 728 728 

  109,245 108,293 103,436 103,436 

          

Shortfall 1,956 553 5,846 3,161 

due to Pension Increase/Loss of Grant 0 0 5,605 5,605 

due to Other Pressures 1,956 553 241 -2,444 

          

Funded by:         

Earmarked Reserves 1,956 553 0 0 

General Reserves/Precept Increase 0 0 5,846 3,161 

  1,956 553 5,846 3,161 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



2. REVENUE BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS 
 

 Funding 

 
2.1 Funding is based on the details from the Provisional Settlement, released in December. The 

baseline funding has increased by £103k from the 2020/21 position.  Localised business rates are 
assumed at the same level of income as last year, with information from Districts not yet available 
to determine next year’s position at this stage.  
 

2.2 For 2019/20 the Home Office confirmed a Section 31 grant of £5.605m million, towards estimated 
costs for GMFRS of £6.1 million. Payment of this grant in 2020/21 was made on a flat cash basis, 
and in 2021/22 whilst not yet formally confirmed by the Home Office, informal indications suggest 
that the grant will again be paid on a flat cash basis. 
 

2.3 Precept income has been included at the same rate as 2020/21 - £66.20 per household at Band 
D equivalent.  The forecast Taxbase for 2021/22, i.e. the number of households paying council 
tax, has seen a decrease when compared to levels assumed in 2020/21, which means that the 
amounts collected as precept income will fall in 2021/22.  
 

2.4 Collection Fund deficit includes the forecast amounts that will be uncollected during 2020/21, 
impacted by the pandemic with forecasts from GM Districts showing a significant deficit for the 
year in relation to GMFRS share of £2.913m relating to Business Rates.  This deficit can be spread 
over the next three financial years, which is £971k per year.    Within the Spending Review, the 
Chancellor announced that 75% of irrecoverable 2020/21 Council Tax arrears will be funded by 
government.  Further information is required on how this funding will be allocated and at this stage 
a sum of £728k has been estimated to be received to offset of the deficit position.    
 

2.5 The Spending Review also announced Grant funding to compensate GMFRS for loss of 2021/22 
precept income resulting from Local Authorities enhancing local Council Tax relief schemes.  The 
indicative sum for GMFRS is £1.349m, the budget will be updated to reflect this once the final 
Council Tax baseline position is confirmed by GM Districts at the end of January.    
 

2.6 There is no indication at this stage of grants to cover Protection related activities.  
 

 Pay and Pensions 

 

2.7  Pay and price inflation includes a small element of non-pay inflation plus an increase of £250 
 per year per employee for those with a salary of less than £24k on the basis of a pay freeze 
 for public sector announced in the Spending Review. 

 

2.8 Changes by the Treasury in 2019/20 concerning the discount rate for unfunded public sector 
pension schemes, have had the effect of increasing employers’ contributions from 17.6% to 
30.2%, equating to £115 million for English Fire and Rescue Authorities (FRAs).  For 2019/20 the 
Home Office confirmed a Section 31 grant of £5.605m, towards estimated costs for GMFRS of 
£6.1m. Payment of this grant in 2020/21 was made on a flat cash basis, and in 2021/22 whilst not 
yet formally confirmed by the Home Office, informal indications suggest that the grant will again 
be paid on a flat cash basis. 
 

 

Page 31



 Programme for Change 
 

2.9  The GMFRS Programme for Change has undertaken a whole service review and developed a 
 proposed operating model for GMFRS and has affected the GMFRS revenue budget from 
 2019/20 and onwards.  Programme for Change outlined a range of options to deliver savings 
 for GMFRS, alongside investment required to deliver transformational change.   Programme for 
 Change savings included in the MTFP are set out in the table below. 

 

 Savings 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

 £000 £000 £000 

Role of the Firefighter - Reduce to 48 
Pumps    316 

Role of the Firefighter - Station Mergers   1,791   

Role of the Firefighter - Crewing     4,267 

Role of the Firefighter - Non-SDS 
  

  711 

Prevention 1,463     

Total Programme for Change savings 1,463 1,791 5,294 

New savings (not Programme for Change) 1,394 0 0 

Total savings  2,857 1,791 5,294 

 

2.10 In 2021/22, savings of £1.458m were originally identified through Programme for Change, 
however, alternative savings have been identified to replace those held against pump reductions.  
Further alternative savings of £1.394 have been identified via a line by line review including the 
reduction in employee budget as a result of pay award being lower than anticipated in 2020/21.  
This has resulted in total savings of £2.857m for 2021/22. 
 

2.11 Non-recurrent implementation costs of Programme for Change were included in the 2020/21 
budget are not required in the budget for 2021/22, this has led to a reduced budget requirement 
of £340k. 

 

3. CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

 

3.1 GMFRS have reviewed capital investment requirements for the Fire Estates, Fire ICT schemes 
and Operational Vehicles and Equipment, and the proposed Capital Programme requirements 
are set out below: 
 

Capital 
Programme 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Future 
Years to 
2027/28 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Estates 1,203 4,999 7,029 3,910 310 930 18,381 

ICT 928 4,017 1,340 150 150 450 7,035 

Vehicles & 
Equipment 4,977 3,922 4,251 2,625 2,884 7,688 26,347 

Sustainability 144 75 75 75 75 225 669 

Total Capital 
Programme 7,252 13,013 12,695 6,760 3,419 9,293 52,432 

Page 32



 
3.2 An estates strategy has been commissioned for the Service to determine where best to invest in 

improving the Fire and Rescue Service estate.  This may not be in the form of new builds, but 
rather refurbishment to improve the overall standard and condition of our Fire Stations.   
 

3.3 Additional investment is anticipated for the Bury Training and Safety Centre, this investment will 
support delivery of our Training Strategy. Equally it strategically unlocks the Training and 
Development Centre  and Manchester Central Fire Station site going forward allowing us to move 
to a single Training Centre.  The Capital Programme will be updated to reflect this once the 
position is confirmed. 

 
4. BUDGET RISKS 

 
4.1 Future budget risks are set out below: 

 

 The anticipated multi-year 2020 Comprehensive Spending Review was deferred in light of the 

implications of the pandemic, with a one-year Spending Review for 2021/22 in its place. Future 

funding beyond 2021/22 has not been confirmed. 

 Unresolved pay claims for firefighters and Local Government Employees.  

 McCloud/Sargeant Remedy – the judgement refers to the Court of Appeal’s ruling that 

Government’s 2015 public sector pension reforms unlawfully treated existing public sectors 

differently based upon members’ age.  The implications of the remedy are not yet known but 

are likely to be significant in future years beyond 2021/22. 

 Delivery of sufficient savings to meet the requirements of the Medium Term Financial Strategy, 

and dependent on availability resources to deliver a change programme of this scale. 

 Emergency Services Mobile Communications Project (ESMCP) – a national project to procure 

and replace the Emergency Services Network.  

 Any changes required following the Manchester Arena Public Inquiry, Grenfell Inquiry and 

Hackett Review – an independent Review of Building Regulations and Fire Safety following 

the Grenfell Fire. 

 Any Business Continuity Arrangements that require funding which are not part of the Base 

Budget. 

 As no capital grants are available to FRAs, future schemes in our Capital Programme will be 

funded by a combination of revenue underspends and borrowing. The costs associated with 

additional borrowing will have to be met from the Revenue Budget. 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
	4 MINUTES
	5 2021/22 POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER BUDGET AND POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER COMPONENT OF THE MAYORAL PRECEPT
	6 GREATER MANCHESTER FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET 2021/22

